Public Document Pack

Penallta House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

Ystrad Mynach, ¥strad Mynach, CA ERP"".LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG SO BWRDEISTIREE SIRGL

CAERFFILY
7

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud &'r agenda hwn cysylltwch & Jo Thomas
(Rhif Ffén: 07714600912 Ebost: thomaj8@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dyddiad: Dydd Mawrth, 10 lonawr 2023

| bwy bynnag a fynno wybod,

Cynhelir cyfarfod aml-leoliad o’r Pwyllgor Cabinet Hawliau'r Tramwy yn Nhy Penallta, a thrwy Microsoft
Teams ar Dydd Mawrth, 17eg lonawr, 2023 am 10.30 am i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda
canlynol. Mae hefyd croesoi chi ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, mae angen o leiaf 3 diwrnod gwaith
or rybudd os byddwch chi'n dymuno gwneud y naill neu'r llall. Bydd gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd yn
cael ei ddarparu ar gais.

Gall aelodau'r Cyhoedd neu'r Wasg fynychu'n bersonol yn Nhy Penallta neu gallant weld y cyfarfod yn fyw
drwy'r ddolen ganlynol: live via the following link: https://civico.net/caerphilly Fodd bynnag, gall y rhai dan
sylw wneud cais am gyflwyno sylwadau ysgrifenedig mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem ar yr agenda hon,
a fydd yn cael eu darllen i'r Pwyllgor. | gael rhagor o fanylion am y broses hon, cysylltwch & Chlerc y
Pwyllgor ar thomaj8caerffili.gov.uk

Mae gan aelodau'r Pwyllgor bwerau dirprwyedig i benderfynu ar y ceisiadau ac mae dyletswydd arnynt i
weithredu mewn capasiti lled-farnwrol. Er mwyn cyflawni'r ddyletswydd honno, rhaid i Aelodau'r Pwyligor
fynychu'r ymweliadau safle a'r cyfarfod.

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffrydio'n fyw a bydd recordiad ar gael i'w weld drwy wefan y Cyngor, ac
eithrio trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr
unigolion sy'n siarad ar gael yn gyhoeddus i bawb drwy wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk

Yr eiddoch yn gywir,

Christina Harrhy
PRIF WEITHREDWR

A greener place Man gwyrddach

" “""!"L"lﬁ; 1

g:w T = =g

A

o
Gallwch ohebu mewn unrhyw iaith ne4 #e



https://civico.net/caerphilly
mailto:lloydj4@caerffili.gov.uk
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/

AGENDA

Tudalennau

1 | dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

2 Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb.

Atgoffir Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o’'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad(au)
personol a/neu ragfarnllyd mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar y rhaglen hon yn unol
a Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer y ddau.
Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion.

3 Cofnodion y Pwyllgor Hawliau Tramwy a gynhaliwyd ar 26 Mawrth 2021.

1-4
Derbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau canlynol:-

4 Cais Am Orchymyn O dan Adran 257 o Ddeddf Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref 1990 | Ddargyfeirio
Hawl Tramwy Cyhoeddus (Cilffordd Gyfyngedig 11 Rhymni) Yn Hen Glwb y Lleng Brydeinig
Frenhinol, Rhymni.

5-18

Cylchrediad:

Cynghorwyr C. Morgan, P. Leonard, J. Pritchard, J. Simmonds a E. Stenner

A Swyddogion Priodol

SUT FYDDWN YN DERNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’ n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwiyng nghofnodion y cyfarfo d
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’rbarnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’rcyfarfod gan gynnwys
manyliony siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefany Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau synymwneud ag
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.

Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas &’rwybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawli gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym
amdanoch a’rhawligwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’rmoddy mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael eibrosesu.

Am wybodaeth bellach ar sutrydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd neu cysylltwch & Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy
e-bostio grifid2@caerffili.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01443 863028.



http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd

Agenda Iltem 3

B
LAEREHILLY

CAERFFILI
> 4
RIGHTS OF WAY CABINET COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS
ON FRIDAY 26TH MARCH 2021 AT 9.30 AM

PRESENT:
Councillor J. Ridgewell (Vice-Chair)

Councillors:
C.J. Gordon (Cabinet Member for Corporate Services), Councillor S. Morgan (Economy and
Enterprise), L. Phipps (Cabinet Member for Housing and Property) and E. Stenner
(Performance and Customer Services).

Together with:

P. Griffiths (Green Space Strategy and Cemeteries Manager). S. Denbury (Countryside and
Rights of Way Assistant), R. Tranter (Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer), C. Evans
(Committee Services Officer) and R. Barret (Committee Services Officer).

Also in Attendance:
Councillor S. Cook (Local Ward Member), T. Taylor-Wells (Taylor-Wimpey), P. Wells (Bond
Construction) and D. Shakesby (Solicitor to Taylor-Wimpy).
RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS
The Chair reminded those present that the meeting was being filmed but would not be live
streamed, however a recording would be available following the meeting via the Council’'s
website — Click Here To View. He advised that decisions would be made by Show of Hands.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence. However, Councillor J. Ridgewell, Vice Chair presided
as Chair in place of Councillor S. Morgan.
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor C. Gordon declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Agenda Item 4 - as an

objector to the applications is known to him as a close personal associate and he left the
meeting during consideration of these items.

Page 1



3.

RIGHTS OF WAY CABINET MINUTES -15TH JANUARY 2021

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 15th January 2021 were approved
as a correct record.

DEFERRED PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY CABINET COMMITTEE MEETINGS 2ND OCTOBER
2020 AND 15TH JANUARY 2021:- APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER UNDER SECTION 119
OF THE HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 TO DIVERT PUBLIC FOOTPATH 54 CAERPHILLY -
AFFECTED BY DEVELOPMENT GRANTED BY PLANNING PERMISSION.

Councillor C. Gordon declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this item as an objector to
the application is known to him and left the meeting during consideration of the item.

The Cabinet Rights of Way Committee were asked to consider and determine the deferred
reports placed before the Public Rights of Way Cabinet Committee on 2nd October 2020 and
15th January 2021 to make an Order to divert a Public Right of Way affected by development
granted by planning permission.

It was noted that the Public Rights of Way Cabinet Committee meeting of 2nd October 2020
was deferred for a period of three months to allow matters relating to the transfer of the area of
land referred to as ‘the wildlife corridor’ to be discussed between the relevant parties.

Following this period of time, the parties involved had not reached agreement, and the land
transfer had not taken place.

The Public Rights of Way Cabinet Committee reconvened the meeting on 15th January 2021
where the matter was reconsidered.

The Public Rights of Way Cabinet Committee resolved to defer a decision until a further
alternative route to the North of the development through the retail park had been explored.

It was noted that to date, no reply has been received from the landowner of the retail park.

During this period, the landowner of the Wildlife Corridor (Mackworth Grange / Bond
Demolition) and the developer (Taylor Wimpey) have now agreed matters relating to the
transfer of land known as the Wildlife Corridor and the parcel of land to the North (at the end of
the Catnic access road), which were identified at Appendices 12, 13 and 14 of the Officer
Report.

The report set out the background, analysis of the route to the North over the retail park which
Members sought further investigation, progress of the land transfer of the land referred to as the
‘Wildlife Corridor’.

The Committee thanked the Officer for the report and discussion ensued. Members sought
clarification on points within the report and along the route and were pleased to note that a
compromise had now been reached between the two parties and the parcel of land at the
Wildlife Corridor had been transferred.

Following consideration and discussion it was moved and seconded that the application be
deferred in order to explore further options for an alternative route. By a show of hands this was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officers report an Order under s119
of the Highways Act 1980 be made to divert the route of Footpath 54 Caerphilly onto a
different route to that sought by the applicant, the route of which was determined by the
Committee as at Appendix 11 to the report to follow route points C, D, E, F, G, B. In

Page 2



addition, options be considered for the route to be improved to via access points F-G in
the future, where possible.

The meeting closed at 2.40 pm.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 4

B
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY CABINET COMMITTEE -
17™ JANUARY 2023

SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER UNDER SECTION 257 OF
THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 TO
DIVERT A PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY (RESTRICTED BYWAY 11
RHYMNEY) AT THE FORMER ROYAL BRITISH LEGION
CLUB,RHYMNEY

REPORTBY: MR S. DENBURY — COUNRTYSIDE AND RIGHTS OF WAY
ASSISTANT
REF: 21/PPO/005 TCPA90 S257 — RESTRICTED BYWAY 11

RHYMNEY GRID REFERENCE: SO 110 090

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To consider and determine an application to make an Order which would divert
Restricted Byway 11 Rhymney at the former Royal British Legion Club,
Rhymney onto an alternative alignment to allow development granted consent,
to be carried out.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Public Rights of Way are recorded on the Definitve Map and Statement and are
afforded Highway status and protection. Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 gives Local Authorities the ability to make Orders to alter public rights of way
which would otherwise be incompatible with development granted consent through the
planning system.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Either to make an Order under s257 town and Country Planning Act 1990 to divert
Restricted Byway 11 Rhymney as detailed in appendix 2 — objections are anticipated

which would require the matter to be determined by PEDW,; or

3.2 Refuse to make an Order under s257 town and Country Planning Act 1990 to divert
Restricted Byway 11 Rhymney as detailed in appendix 2 — The public right of way will
remain on the original definitive line and development will not be able to proceed to that
consented. Reasons for the refusal must be given. The matter could be appealed and
determined by PEDW.

Page 5



4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

The legal test appears to have been metto allow the diversion of the public right of way.
The test is:

The Local Authority may make an Order under S257 Town and Country Planning Act
1990 to divert or stop up a right of way if it is satisfied that it is necessary to do so in
order to enable development to be carried out in accordance with the planning
permission granted.

THE REPORT

The Rights of Way Cabinet Committee has the power to make Orders under section
257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 at the request of the
landowner/applicant in order to enable development to be carried out in accordance
with the planning permission granted.

The site of the former Royal British Legion Club is crossed by a Restricted Byway
(number 11 in the former Parish of Rhymney on the Definitive Map and Statement).

Planning consent was sought and subsequently granted under application numbers
21/0530/FULL and 21/0597/FULL to erect dwellings on the site.

Following consultation from the Planning Officer and the Rights of Way department,
comments were made in relation to the existence of the public right of way, and its
incompatibility with the proposed development as proposed. The applicant and agent
were made aware of the comments at that time as well.

An initial proposal to alter the alignment of the public right of way, routed the restricted
byway along the estate road at the centre of the development. From past experience
of similar consultations proceeding development, as well as guidance from the Welsh
Government, use of estate roads to carry public rights of way should be avoided in
favour of separate, traffic free routes.

Welsh Government guidance: (page 73 of ‘Public rights of way - guidance for local
authorities 2016’)

7.9. When an existing right of way needsto be revised to accommodate the
planned development, any alternative alignment should avoid the use of estate
roads, drives, gardens or other private areas wherever possible and preference
should be given to the use of made-up estate paths through landscaped or
open space areas away from vehicular traffic. The potential of alternative routes
to encourage sustainable transport and active travel should also be considered.

The applicant submitted an amended proposal on 30" November 2021 to alter the
alignment to route the restricted byway around the perimeter of the development
which officers considered to remove the issues of using an estate road to carry a
public right of way.

It was subsequently brought to the attention of the applicant that the design for the
alternative route, appeared to use part of a steep embankment, and the agent
submitted an altered application and plan on 14" June 2022 to remove this
uncertainty.

A pre-order consultation was carried out on 22" April 2022 for a 28 day period to
gauge perception of the proposals from statutory consultees and statutory
undertakers (utilities companies).

Page 6


https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/public-rights-of-way-guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/public-rights-of-way-guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

Representations against the proposal were received from the Green Lane Association
(‘GLASS’) representative as detailed in full in appendix 3. The summary of these
representations surrounds the nature of the path being confined between fences /
boundaries, and the tight turns associated with the alignment being difficult to
negotiate for certain lawful users — particularly horse drawn carriages.

Following discussions between the developer and GLASS, an alternative diversion on
the same route as that initially proposed along the estate road was submitted on 7t
July 2022 and this was put to pre-order consultation in the same manner as the first
on 19" August 2022.

Representations against the proposal were received from the Open Spaces Society
representative as detailed in full in appendix 4. The summary of these
representations surrounds the use of the estate road through the development — a
matter which officers had attempted to avoid in the earlier stages of the proposal.

Further correspondence was received from GLASS on 26" August 2022 stating:- “We
have no objection to the diversion provided the position, width and surface type is in
accordance to the latest plan..”

on 30" August 2022, the agent confirmed that they wished the matter to be
determined in its current form i.e. the proposal in appendix 2.

A statementwas also received at the request of Mr Denbury from the applicant
(appendix 5) which provides further detail on the parking arrangements for the
development.

Conclusion

The legal test associated with making an Order under s257 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 has been met as the public right of way would otherwise prevent
the development from being carried out in accordance with planning permission
granted.

The applicant has after seeking planning consent, attempted to accommodate the
right of way in various proposals, none of which appear to be entirely acceptable to all
parties consulted.

It has been stated by the OSS representative that a redesigned development or a
proposal where the development is moved in its entirety might alleviate their
concerns, but such changes would presumably require the matter to be reconsidered
by the Planning department and Planning Committee, incurring costs and further time
delays for the applicant, hence the applicant has asked for the matter to be
determined in its present form.

The present proposal would appear to allow access to lawful users on a
straightforward route through the development, however the points raised regarding
parking by the OSS representative can be evidenced in many developments county
and countrywide, where footways (pavements) are obstructed by parked cars.

The development, is however understood to be for the applicant and immediate family
only, and is not a commercial development.

Parking should be sufficient enough, given the low density of the development, to
prevent the issues raised by the OSS representative — although the future use cannot
be forecast, and therefore there are no guarantees that future parking would not
become an issue.

Page 7



7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

ASSUMPTIONS

It is assumed that parking is sufficiently adequate for the development so that
vehicles will not need to park on the access roadi.e. the alternative route therefore
blocking passage to certain lawful use by the public.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The proposed diversion of restricted byway 11 in the former parish of Rhymney, under
section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 will allow the consented
development to proceed. The proposal will not be considerably less commodious,
being approximately 20 metres shorter than the existing route, however the test under
s257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 is that it is necessary to divert or
extinguish a public right of way to enable development to be carried out.
Consultations have already been held with user groups and other interested parties,
and any issues foreseen have been discussed and the proposal amended to the best
of the applicant’s ability. The final proposal has not been acceptable to all consulted
for reasons given in the report. The proposal will not have an impact upon the
protected characteristics with the exception of disability and pregnancy & maternity. In
these cases, the relevant issues are for the additional length of the path and the
gradient. This has been considered, and the increased distance, would benefit users
as the gradient would be reduced slightly by the greater length. The alternative route
is therefore not considered to negatively impact upon any protected characteristic.

Link to full Integrated Impact Assessment

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Incurred costs are recoverable from the applicant, and therefore there are no long
term financial implications to the authority.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Personnel implications include officer time in preparing reports, drafting Orders and
notices and arranging advertisements in the press as required by legislation. Notices
must also be erected on site and maintained in place for the specified duration.

CONSULTATIONS

The consultation to the current proposal drew opposition from the Open Spaces
Society (OSS) representative (appendix 4). The opposition is based firstly on the
arrangement of the proposed development. However, the arrangement was
considered and approved by the Planning Committee and it is not for this process to
challenge the outcome of the decision. We are to determine whether the diversion is
necessary to allow the development to be implemented.

The second point is relating to future parking within the development. It is stated that
parking is a problem within developments, a fact which can be evidenced by the
number of complaints received regarding vehicles being parked on pavements
obstructing them from use by pedestrians and users with pushchairs and mobility
aids/scooters. The issue with regard to sufficient parking is again one for the planning
department to refer to at the planning committee meeting or design stages of a
development. Page


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/iia-21-ppo-005-s257tcpa90

10.3

10.4

11.

111

Author:

However this is a small development of only three properties, and parking, even with
guests should be possible within the curtilage of each property. This however can
never be guaranteed.

The original consultation drew opposition from the Green Lane Association (GLASS)
representative (appendix 3) on the grounds that the alternative route would be
unusable by users of horse drawn carriages given the tight corners in the proposed
route. For this reason the applicant redesigned the route to allow a straighter
passage through the development.

It is appreciated that neither option is perfect, however on the assumption that the
access road is not used for parking of any vehicles, this proposal is the simplest and
most accessible for all lawful user groups.

STATUTORY POWER

Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Mr S. Denbury, Countryside and Rights of Way Assistant, denbus @caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultees:

Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive, harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk,

Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment, willims@caerphilly.gov.uk,

Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer, trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services, donovi@caerphilly.gov.uk

Steve Harris, Head of Financial Services and s.151 officer, harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk
Councillor Philippa Leonard, Cabinet Member, leonap@-caerphilly.gov.uk

Councillor Chris Morgan, Cabinet Member, morgac15@caerphilly.gov.uk

Councillor Julian Simmonds, Cabinet Member, simmoj@caerphilly.gov.uk

Councillor James Pritchard, Cabinet Member, pritcj@caerphilly.gov.uk

Councillor Carl Cuss, Local Councillor, Cusscj@caerphilly.gov.uk

Community Council

Clerk to the Rhymney Community Council

Prescribed Organisations:

British Horse Society

Byways and Bridleways Trust
Open Spaces Society

The Ramblers

Statutory Undertakers

Openreach (formerly: British Telecom)
Dwr Cymru/ Welsh Water

Wales and West Utilities

Western Power Distribution

Page 9


mailto:harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:willims@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:donovl@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:leonap@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:morgac15@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:simmoj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:pritcj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:Cusscj@caerphilly.gov.uk

Background Papers:

None

Appendices:

Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5

Location Plan 1:10,000 scale

Detailed Plan 1:500 scale

Response to consultation (Green Lane Association (‘GLASS’))
Response to consultation (Open Spaces Society (‘OSS’))
Statement from the applicant

Page 10



‘TLESZO00L SO 'TTOT SMAU oo .“eewvn oo 000 LE

aseqelep pue YBUAOD LWOID @
"TLESZO00L OF '2Z0Z BiEpR BUOHD w 1318|4)
neasey & U409 A JUIBLPAEH &) b 3

oo 0000LE

3.

sh Buipeuco \ O.D
AQ paurRio 29 UEd souepInb
puE a21ApE Jaypn 4 Cdep aspugag
ay} Jo ped wioy Jou saop pue
AUO 20UBRING 40} I UOIJE LUOIUL S1Y ]|
W B NS Avap

peIdiaAne o 10BUAR 0 JobeL |28

14D Y2AA|IES "0 de | 4,0 Uy
014Ny UAAA PIU Dk BIun UA pelulavwe
123140 Je uoy Yleepogin 4 28w

W 000°0L:

ar

e 000608

Appendix 1

ue|4 uoneaoT
S00-0Odd-1Z

fepp jo siyfiy angng
/ snppaoyt)

Aawiel] neijame H ‘ Y Ok : j N B\
: 5oUl . + S ASTY ..a_A( NS :».3_./
ITIEI2T T - ] : ot O\ ! A \ P
Val' : 4 A s e < : A / ) _

1
oo 000€CLE

— \

o 000 LE

oo 00000E

oo 000608

Page 11



'TL£5Z000) SO 'Zzog Swbu
aseqelep pue 1ybuAdod umolD @
‘T4€SZ000L OY 'TZ0T BIepp BjuoId
neiey e uolog A JUBlMEH @
‘sn funoeuod
Aq paulelqo aq ued souepinf
pue e21ape JeyunS “depy saluleq
a1 Jjo Led Wwioy Jou saop pue
Auo aouepinf 10} S1 UOIIBULIOJUI SIY ]
‘e nyAsAB Avup
pellsmie oe 106UAG o lobeyl eeb
142 yomies “joluyia dejy 1,0 ueyl
olny U pru oe Giun ud peluisiue
18JA6 e uoy yieepogim 1 aep

YW 000}k

AemAg
pajoulsay
pajayeun
fouyegay e T
gay bipabusAb
PRIOYIID
pasojo aq
03 yyed Buiisixg
/ PAMWApPPIP
12 |oeb
| Bipatpaepie
1gAmT

pajeald aq 0}
yied pasodoliyd

/ pAmal0 19 |9€h mmm
| Bipaipaepe

Appendix 2

1AM
pusba

06YdOL 2528 S00/0dd/f 12
AoUWAYY / 1UWAYY |}

AemAg pajplysay
/ Bipabufjhe) ppioyiio

Aepp Jo s1ybry anqnd
/ SNPPaOYAD
Amuwel] nelmeH

P i
A TVITA20 T D

000602

000LLE

0ooLLE

000602

Page 12



Appendix 3

From:
To: Subject: Date:

T

WWW: Rights Of Way
Re: 21-PPO-005 Pre-Order Consuttation for diversion of a public right of way 04 May 2022 11:33:27
xkVcH0686QGVX0kG.png 202X2yvSZB0x Jpm.png

Dear Stefan,

Thank youfor the early consultation on the plansto divert RBW11, a Public Right of Way (PRoW) over land at the former Royal
British Legion Club (RBLC), Rhymney. After careful consideration, the Green Lane Association feels the detail of the plans fall
short of meetingthe required testsand advises it would object to adiversion order based on them.

ASSESSMENT OF RBW11
Initial inspection shows RBW11 to be of historical interest. The PRoW isrecorded as formingpart of a wider historical road
network connecting Brecon to Rhymney. Given the section to be affected is small and the historic route to the southwest is
truncated nearby at the ordinary road network, the Association believesa pragmatic approach can permit itsrevision, providedthe
basic testsare met for all class of user. (A Restricted Byway (RB) records public rights for user on foot, horse, and vehicles other
than mechanically propelled vehicles. Higher rights may exist, albeit most but not all are likely extinguished by the Natural
Environment Rural Communities Act 2006).

I am struck by the difficulty faced attemptingto divert aPRoW that hasbeen long obstructed. Such cases often open acan of
worms. T here isa significant question in my mind as to the position, width and scope of the public access across the development
site.

It'sworth notingthat RBW11 isnot recorded on the National Street Gazetteer, which may have simplified the process. Thisis an
apparent omission asit is a Highway Maintainable at Public Expense (HMPE) by virtual of 5.49 of the Countryside and Rights of
Way Act 2000. Albeit, earlier legislation may have already confirmed HMPE status on CRF11 (s.47 of the National Parksand
Access to the Countryside Act 1949, et al).

The recorded route of the PRoW does not exist on the ground, it's fenced off and the land raised, presumably as part of the
development for the RBLC. T he Definitive Map and Statement shed little light on the width, recording the route as varyingin
width, albeit with anotional 10 feet approximation overthe length of several public paths. Historic mappingsuggests the
development site may be a place where the highway boundaries were considerably wider. Aerial photography from aroundthe
time of the Parish surveys suggests a way of between 8 and 12m. Although these are far from conclusive.

Witness marks on the ground suggest the continuation of RBW11 to the north hasbeen in use in modern times; the question then
arises, how did the users cross the RBLC, given that the recorded route of the PRoW was obstructed? | suspect they simply used
the RBLC car park and its connection to the estate. T his leads me to wonder if dedication of public rightshas occurred over a
wider area. | am drawn to thetrack to the west of the site and question whether part of thisalso holds public rights.

Reviewing the supplied plans highlights inconsistencies with the depiction of the site at itswest side. T he track ismissing, and the
embankment appearsnot to align with images and maps of the area. Possibly, thispart of the plan was thought unimportant;
however, the proposedroute of the diversion has now brought this area into sharp focus. | find it challenging to judge the p lans
given the uncertainty.

ASSESSMENT OF THE REVISED ROUTE

Notwithstanding, | believe the Association can adopt a pragmatic approach, given the small scale of the development. It seems
sufficient to provide a simple connection between the continuedroute of RBW11 to the north andthe ordinary road network.

From a user perspective, any revision to the route must be considerate of those permittedto use it by right. Being an RB, the
primary concern isfor horse-drawn vehicles (HDV) and cycles, asproviding for these usually ensures the other classes of users as
catered for. Although care must be taken to ensure users are not brought into conflict with one another. Importantly, any diversion
must provide an equivalent level of convenience or greater, and continue to be maintained at public expense.

At face value, the proposals do not provide the public with this; They resemble an estate footpath ratherthan a highway for
vehicles. It is one thingto provide a clear way over open ground and another to confine userswithin fences on either side and
sharp turns. The tightness of the turns limits negotiation by HDVs, and | am unconvinced two carriages could pass each other, or
avoid crossing by takingin turns, as the ends of the fenced-off corridor are obscured. I am similarly unconvinceda wheelchair
user or person on a recumbent cycle faced with an oncoming HDV would have little where to go.

The Green Lane Association objectsto the planned diversion of RBW11 for these reasons. However, | see no reason why
reasonable pragmatism should not findan agreeable solution.

GUIDELINE
I think it beneficial to indicate what sort of compromise may prove acceptable. Regrettably, the current site plan istoo uncertain to
provide a considered opinion based on it. However, the equivalence test seems more likely to be met by widening the highway
and removingthe tight bends at points Band D, although much depends on the detail. Our general guideline width for a greenlane
is 5m. It may be possible to consider less, provided it is straightforward to negotiate with room to manoeuvre, andregular passing
places are provided.

I'm drawn to an earlier plan for the site that showed the highway running between the houses. There is much detail missing -
surface, width, whether it is fenced, bounded or gated, and how it runs over the driveway. However, at face value, it may provide
both the desired simple connection and sufficient room for users to share the space and co-exist with each other and their
surroundings.

The Association wholeheartedly supportsthe Welsh Government (WG) guidelines indicating preference should be given to

Page 13


mailto:RightsOfWay@CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK

avoiding estate roads where possible (para 7.9 of the Guidance for Local Authoritieson Public Rights of Way — August 2016). However, given the
apparent difficulty in delivering a simple (not torturous) alternative within the relatively small development area, it may prove worthwhile to consider
thiscase on its individual merits. Especially in relation to the inherent contradiction in the WG guidelines - that rerouting a vehicular PRoW to avoid
vehicle traffic isnot achievable. Perhaps, given the land's previous use as a car park, it may be reasonable to consider the level of traffic the public has
previously co-existedwith and compare thiswith the expected level of traffic from the development.

Yours sincerely,

=

iJ

South Wales Representative
Green Lane Association www.glassukorg
www.trailwise2.00.uk

This email and any attachments are confidential. They may contain privileged information and are intended for the named addressee(s) only, and must not be forwarded or distributed without the consent of te sender. Ifyouare not the intended recipient, please notify us
immediately and do not disclose, distribute, or retain this email or any part of it. Unless expressly stated, opinions in this email are those of the individual sender and not of GLASS, orits membership. You must take full responsibility for virus checking this email and any
attachments.

The Green Lane Association Ltd is a national user group protecting our heritage of ancient vehicular rights of way. Registered in England, No 5369836, Registered Office: : Blue Pig Cottage, 1 Elmer Street, Grantham, Lincolnshire, NG31 6RE

On 22/04/2022 10:58, WWW: Rights Of Way wrote:

Dear Consultee,

Please find attached a consultation for your attention. To enable us to determine the matter in a timely manner, aresponse w ithin
28 days would be appreciated if possible.

Copies of this consultation have also been sent to the Rights of Way Cabinet Committee Members, Local Ward Member,
Community Council, Green Lane Association, British Driving Society, British Horse Society, Byw ays and Bridlew ays Trust, Open
Spaces Society and the Ramblers.

Kind regards,

Stefan Denbury

Cynorthw yydd Cefn Gw lad a Haw liau Tramwy | Countryside And Rights Of Way Assistant Cyngor Bw rdeistref

Sirol Caerffili | Caerphilly County Borough Council

¥x* 01443 866669
®“Bdenbus@caerphilly. gov. uk__denbus @caerffili.qov.uk

Porwch ein gwefan | Browse our website www.caerffili.gov.uk | www.caerphilly.gov.uk

Hoffwch ni ar Facebook | Like us on Facebook www.facebook.com/Caerphilly CBC

Dily nwch ni ar Twitter | Follow us on Twitter twitter.com/caerphillycbc

Gwy liwch ein Sianel YouTube | Watch our Y ouTube Channel www.y outube.com/caerphillycbctv Edry chweh ar ein horiel
lluniau ar Flickr | View our photo galleries on Flickr www.flickr.com/photos/caerphillycbc

Gallwch ohebu mewn unrhy wiaith neu fformat.Ni fydd gohebu y n Gy mraeg y n creu unrhyw oedi. Correspondence may be in any
language or format.Corresponding in Welsh will not lead to any delay .

Page 14


https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.glass-uk.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7CRightsOfWay%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C0ea9c5bb5afe43c9cc2408da2db98470%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637872572068346085%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=c8CS%2FA4PgubhLNidXdO6aRjK5aU6v0bXsf6M1Uv%2FmUw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.trailwise2.co.uk%2F&data=05%7C01%7CRightsOfWay%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C0ea9c5bb5afe43c9cc2408da2db98470%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637872572068346085%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FtIuwrqDowrrDV6PlExhN%2BVvoy6eZM8uEPGai4RMrLU%3D&reserved=0
mailto:denbus@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:denbus@caerffili.gov.uk
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FCaerphillyCBC&data=05%7C01%7CRightsOfWay%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C0ea9c5bb5afe43c9cc2408da2db98470%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637872572068346085%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9jBvIUc6q9z5F7FLMWna0Mjj5qkOPJd%2F1k6sXNJhZdI%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fcaerphillycbc&data=05%7C01%7CRightsOfWay%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C0ea9c5bb5afe43c9cc2408da2db98470%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637872572068346085%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OAP0BLzLI%2Bpk0FQQ%2BkKt14nhyyR4558d6c2RBwkaDAQ%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fcaerphillycbctv&data=05%7C01%7CRightsOfWay%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C0ea9c5bb5afe43c9cc2408da2db98470%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637872572068346085%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HzAh92FGrEiypA4NDkhaKLWavy4S5RFJPpBRQVzxGtw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.flickr.com%2Fphotos%2Fcaerphillycbc&data=05%7C01%7CRightsOfWay%40CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK%7C0ea9c5bb5afe43c9cc2408da2db98470%7C5a3d68bcadcf462e918129b4b42b314d%7C0%7C0%7C637872572068346085%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pyfW2EUvr%2BGjUudL2InAdGnO6x15jlI43UZMRUtDmBU%3D&reserved=0

Appendix 4

Open
® ) Spaces
Jo&ie@

TEL 01491 573535
EMAIL hg@oss.org.uk
WEB  WWW.0SS.0rg.uk

22/8/22
Dear Mr. Denbury

TOWNAND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990, SECTION 257

PROPOSED DIVERSION OF RESTRICTED BYWAY NO. 11 RHYMNEY between GR SO
11055 08972 and 11072 09043 at the former Rovyal British Legion Club.

| visited the site today, but | was unable to walk along RBW 11 because it was
obstructed by fencing and a padlocked gate.

| spoke with some local people who live not far from the area that was once owned by
the Royal British Legion and they spoke of the area formerly being open, easily
accessible and easy to use. Even if the area were not obstructed by fencing and a
padlocked gate, the byway would not be easy to use as the ground appears to have
been bulldozed and the terrain is uneven.

| had wanted to view the site to see if | could suggest an alternative diversion because
the one proposed is not acceptable. | understand that under section 257 of Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 that Council may make an Order to divert restricted byways if
itis satisfied that itis necessary to do so to enable development to be carried out.
However, the plans could be altered so that the byway would follow the route marked
“track” on the map which is parallel to a lane leading to some sheds. If the whole
development were moved 3 metres south-southwest there would be room for the byway
to skirt the development.

An alternative is to forsake the temporary caravans and make room for the 3 houses in a
different configuration. This would leave plenty of room for the byway on the north side
of the development before it turns south-southeast and rejoins the present line. It is

Page 15



necessary to divert to enable the development to be carried out, but
the line of the diversion should not be on roads shared with vehicular
traffic.

It has to be agreed that parking is a huge problem and a significant
minority of people have no regard for the access needs of others so
long as they can park with as little inconvenience to themselves.
Added to this too many people do not consider how much space is
available to them to park their cars when they purchase a vehicle.
Although the planning application shows provision for car parking on
the plots, itis highly likely that at times there will be more cars than the
plots have catered for. Extra cars, visitors' cars will be parked on the
byway. When the propensity is for CCBC to allow garages to be
converted into living spaces ( 95%+ successful applications ) itis
obvious that the byway will be obstructed by parked cars and itis
highly unlikely that the authority will have the means to take action
against those obstructing the byway. It would be disingenuous of
either CCBC staff or the landowners to pretend that parking on this
approach road would not be a problem.

As a result the Open Spaces Society opposes the proposed route of
the diversion. However, the Open Spaces Society is keen to find a
reasonable compromise - a route where walkers, equestrians,
cyclists and those driving a horse and cart do not have to dodge and
dive from cars & vans to ensure their safety.

Yours sincerely,

Correspondent for the Open Spaces Society for
Caerphilly County Borough

Page 16



Appendix 5

From:
To: Denbury, Stefan
Cc:
Subject: RE: RBW11 Rhymney 21-PPO-005 s257 TCPA9O
Date: 20 October 2022 13:07:14
Hi Stefan

Thank youfor your e mail and opportunity towrite a supporting statement, please find below our thoughts:

Regarding moving the rights of way on the former British legion site, we fully understand and take on board the concernsraised
regarding the diversion, we have considered the parkingand understand that in some cases this becomes a problem for
residential areas, the propertieshoth have garages which are detached so there are no plans to convert them and incorporate then
into living space, we have also made sure that the driveways are a good size enabling parking for more than two cars per plot,
we believe that we have provided parkingfor at least 10 cars on driveways plus garaged parking on the land.

Theroad in only serves two propertiesso anyone accessing the public right of way will not be inconveniencedby parked cars
ontheroador by much traffic, the new proposedroute is a more direct route for users to gain access to the public highway and
we will ensure that any planting does not obstruct vision each way enteringthe highway.

We are very happy to work with youin order to make thisadjustment to the route of the rightsof way, | do not believe that it
will be detrimental to users and we are happy to make provision ensuring that parkingwill not become an obstruction for users
of therights of way.

Kindest Regards

Page 17


mailto:DENBUS@CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion y Pwyllgor Hawliau Tramwy a gynhaliwyd ar 26 Mawrth 2021.
	4 Cais Am Orchymyn O dan Adran 257 o Ddeddf Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref 1990 I Ddargyfeirio Hawl Tramwy Cyhoeddus (Cilffordd Gyfyngedig 11 Rhymni) Yn Hen Glwb y Lleng Brydeinig Frenhinol, Rhymni.

